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(USAFLS)

From:

Sent: 2007 12:47 PM

To: )
Subject;

Hi_ — I still am having trouble with my voice and am headed home now. Here is the latest:

That 1s probably coming late tonight or early

tomorrow morning.

The hearing is off for tomorrow, as is the grand jury time.

r of the draft indictment, copies of the

‘When you have a chance, can

rand jury transcripis, and a
HD you can start on that while I am laid up? Thank you.

Asgsigtant U.S. Attorney
West I‘alm !em_‘-! F! 3351
Phone

Fax

EFTA01718408



SEP-12-2008 0DB:18 RMD-WINCHESTER 2 B oot

r .
- Fp!?;:ﬁ:dﬁ 1. | FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION
w0-27-300¢ | | i FACSIMILE COVER SHEE
| _??_ T =T T - =t
[ Py " PRECEDENCE
| ! Immediate C Priority : ¢ Routine
i CLASSIFICATION .
C TopSecret | | Secret & Confidential (" Sensitive € Unclassified
| P TO

Mame of Offlce: | .

Facsimile Number: Dape:

q la/200°

Telephone Mumber:

; = FROM ' |
Name pf Office: |

I ol DETAILS

P

Specizl Handling Instructions:
' i !

| i

of Com ml..lnlcatlnn Faxed: \

Cﬁptﬁ @;f f@:/‘u R e Quest _ ?

Brief Description|

]

I ’

: | _ i
"o

1

1 '
] | i
l Rk : WARNING
Information attachad|to tl‘h_: cover sheet Is LS. Government Property. If you are not the Intended reciplent of this Information disclosure,
reproduction, distribution, or use of this Information Is prohiblted (16,USC, § 641). Please notity the ariginator or local FEI Office
immeqmwv Lo airranqc farproper dispesition.
1 i -
N

Poo b , .
FD-448 {Rﬁﬂsald 1}1-27:'20‘34] Poge 1 of 1 rEDEFAL BUREAW OF INVESTIGATION

EFTA01718409



T oem mwww mwras s mimmmmmmm—— NN T

~ o LEWIS TEINeL

| ] R ATTORNETS AT LAW

IIuiy 28/2008

'Via FedEx;
iRecord/Information Dissemination Section

FOIA Rﬂqut‘:ﬁt Coordinalor
_Fedeml Bureau of Investeation, Miami Field Office

L ]

North Miarm Beach, FL 33169
' |

Re: Freedom of Information Acv/Privacy Act Request
Seeking Documents from a USAQ / FBI Investigation
i the Southern District of Florida.

To Whﬂm It Mi}r Concern: -

We write on bﬂhdif of our client, Jei]’rex Epsiein, to request certain rccurds under lhe Freedom of
]nfﬂnnatmn r‘mr and Privacy Acl

Mr. FDSI.E::IH haq been the focus of a joint investigation by the U.S. Attorncy’s Office for the
Suuthum District of Florida (“USAO™) and Federal Burcau of Investigation (“FBI™).

The US&O anclfm FBI may have in its posscssion original (or copics of original) documents in
'paper and clecuomc form seized from Mr. Epstein pursuant to a search| warrant executed on his
jPalm Beach, Flﬂnda home on October 20, 2005. Wc request copics of these paper and electronic

. dﬂCLL-.‘n'E’JﬂtS.I

Further: the USAO and/or FBI may have interviewed (i
| (DOB , (iii) '
B (DOB ', (v) (DOB I, (vi
! (DOB I, (vii) (DOB . (vini

|ﬂﬂ (o) I/ A (DOS.  We belicve that these interviews would
:have taken p]ﬂi:.e between 2006 and the present. Under FOIA/PA, we requast copies of all interview
notes dnd F-BT BD% concerning these interviews.

(DOE . (V)

‘'We are ?Enu:]cra;i_n;g Mr. Epstein’s fully executed Certification of Identity {Ft:-i:'m DOJ -361).

Copies iufi ﬁn}' records responsive to this FOTA/PA request should be sent to my attention at the
address'listed below. Thank you for your courlesy.

TR
Very truly yours,

Encl. | ;

i
G . B -oconut crove. rLoRion 33133

| T £ IMILE —- v LEWISTEIN.COM
| TELESHONE - « FACS |
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|
| :
Lr.s. Departml!ut ?r.]mm: Certification of Identity

. = . =

Pri nc:r Act Statmunt_ 1n accordance with 28 CFR Section 16.41(d) personal duta sullicien! lo .d:mlf:f the individuals submitting requests

by mail under the Privacy Act of 1974, 5 U.S.C. Section 552a, is required. The purpose of this solicitation is to ensure that the records of
mmv:dnmks whe arc the subjeet of U.S. Department of Justice systems of records are not wrongfully disclosed by the Department. Fuilure to
.I'-ur:uah this information will resultin no aclion being taken on the request. Folse informaulion on tiy [urm méy subject the requester in crim- "
inal penadiics v undc{ I8 iJ E . Section 1001 and/or 5 U.E.C. Section 552a(3)(3).

Pul ic rcpﬂrl:mg burdcn fur this collection of information i estimated 1o average 0.50 hours per responss, mbludmg the lime for review-
ingjinstructioos, swdune. existing data sources. galhering and maintining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection
of information. Suggr;suuns for reducing this burden may be submitted to Director, Facilities and Administrative Services Staff, Justice
\-'Llnug::m:n! Division: .S, Department of Justice, Washington. DC 20530 and the Dffice of nformation and Regulatory Alluirs, Ofice
of Ma.nnbcmmi and B!uﬂgcl Publie Use Repons Project (1103. E{l!lﬁh Whashington, DC 20503,

NRE

FL]LI Name of REqUEﬁler‘ 3 F-Fﬁ-.‘ g_p;-lg‘e,}
' |

Cli,lamshnp'marus 2 Vwded éiﬂ.ﬂ r Social Security Number * ____

st it 5, [ - e 57
0 -

IDatect'B:r@h jﬁ;ﬁ ZD 1903 Pla(:ccrfBirth MNew '\!ar"k

[ dwl‘wt u;n.dcr p-:rmll}' o,’r' perjury under the laws of the United Sinlex of America thal the fm'egmnglls vue and eorrect, and that | am the

person named ahovc and | understand thal any [ulsilication of this stitement is punizhable under the provisions of 18 11.5.CC. Section 1001
h:.]a fine of nol more Lhan $10.000 or by imprisonment of not more than five yewrs or both, and that requesting ur ublaining sny record(s)
unitler Talse n.{c-t-en!bes i® p‘:ml-: under the provisions of § U.S.C. 552u(i)3) by a fine of not more than 55000,

Date__? {,?ﬂ-"

OPTIONAL: Autlsrization to Release Information to Another Person
| L :
This form 15 also io be completed by a requester who is authorizing informalion relating 1o himsell or hersell’ 1 be released W another person.
do .
Further. pursuinal 16 5 L}.‘S.C. Section 552a(h), | authorize the 1.8, Department of Justice 10 release any and all information relating to me i

Print or Type Name

T Mume of :ndwidm.l wha is the subject of the revord sought.

2 [ndi “"-di'l'ﬂ] Subnumng & request under the Privacy Act of 1974 must be either “a citinen of th::. United States or an alien laswlully
admitted for ptrm.mcnl'rcmd:nm pursuant 1o § 1J.5.C. Scction 552u(n}(2). Requests will be processed as Froedom of Information Act
requests pursuantto 5 U.5.C. Sectiun 552, rather than Privacy Act requesty, for indivituuls who are not United States citizens or alicns
lawfully sdmitted/for pérmanent residence.

3 Providing your sociul security number is voluntary, You arc wsked 10 provide your social sccurity number only 1o Facililate he
|d=nl1[' mtmn| ol ﬁ:mrdﬂmlnuur- to you. Wilhout your social security number, the Departiment may be uasble tv locire sty or all records
mlﬂllllﬂ” 10 NoiL! I ;

| 4 Signavire of individual who is the subject of the record soughl,

| i J
FORM APPROVED OME MO, (1050010 FORM DO 361

RRMIRES 43107, _ _ . SEPT B2
I
| TOTAL F.0D4

EFTA01718411
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a | . ' .
K _ ! : : ' e i
U5|- Department of Justice : Certification of Identity R
il | : _ . 5
i |I N . CF e sty
Im

Frwac;.' Act Smmnmnt In accordance with 28 CFR Section 16,41(d) personal data suflicicat t identify the individuals submilling requests
by [wail Lmd:r the Pmac.y Actof 1974, 5 U.S.C. Section 552a, is required. The purposc of this solivilution is o easure that the records of
mu&wdum who arc the subject of U.S. Department of Justice systems of records are not wrongfully disclosed by the Deparimenl. Failure to
lurnish this information will result in no uction being mken on the request. Fulse inlormution on this form may =uh;m1 the requester o crim-
inal penaltics un:l:lr 18 5U.!> . Section 100! andfor 5 U.S.C. Section 552a(i)(3).

Puablic n:pumrlg brden f or this collection of infonnation is cstimated Lo average 0.50 hours per respouse, including the timc for revicws
ing instuctions. cﬁan:hmg cxisting dals sourees, gathering and maingining the daw needed, and cumplclmv and reviewing the collection
of ml’um'tunn Suggestions for reducing this burden may be submitted 1o Director, Facilitics and Adminisirative Services Stall. Justice
Mdmm:mu:mbwmﬁn U.S. Deparmment of Justice, Washingtoa, DC 20530 and the Office of Information and Regulalory .ﬁ.lI"ura Office
of M:-ma.gcm:nt ard Budgel. Public Use Reports Project (1103-0016). Washinglon, DC 20503.

Fu1ll Name ?f Iﬂluqu'cstcr 1 TEFE E‘_E'\; EPLTEIN

| |
Y
. Citimnship!Slal.us i Ten STATES Social Security Number 3

cpoesied bt i T2 I C..: o 5553

DathElth ;IE.._; 26, 19.X3 Place of Birth __.__ Aewl \Mork

i {J.:;..Iwr_n: under p.:lna,h} of perjury under the taws of the Ubiled Swites of Amedca that the fnreﬂmngh true and correct, and that | am the
petson named | aboye. and | understand (hat any falsification of this statcment is punishable under the provisions of 18 U.S.C. S=ction 1001
by la fine of ot more than $10,000 or by |mpu1mnmcnl ul pot more than five years or both, and that requesting or obtaining any record(s)
under False pq:clm is punishoble vader the provisions of § (1.8.C. 552a(i}(3) by a line of nol more than $5.000.

Sil:natum4 k._,/_\ ‘_/@/— : Date ’7//7(46{

e

L

[ T
OPTIONAL:, iAuthorization to Relcase Information to Another Person £
[ : .
s form is also iu:‘.s be completed by a reguester whe is authorizing informativn rekiting 1 himeell or hersell 10 be released 1o another person.
| Loy )
Further, puma:.l-mt 'v._m 5 US.C. Scction $52a(b), ] authorze the U.S. Depastment of Justice o releire any and all infarmation relating to me tn: ©

L

!
' ; | - Print or Type Name

1 Name u‘fmdmdua] who is the subjeet of the record sought

2 lndwlcfunl ﬁuhmlmno & request under the Privacy Act of 1974 must be sither “u citizen of te United States or an alien lawfully
wdmitied for |mrr:'-::m. tresidence,” pursuant lo § UL5.C. Section, 352a(a)(2). Requests will be provessed as Freedom of Information Act
requests pursiantlto 5, 1.5.C. Scction 552, rather than Privacy Act requests, for individuals who ure not United States citizens or aliens
lawfully sdmitied {or permaneat residence. '

} Providing yiour ancial security number is volunlary. You are asked to provide your social seeurity number only 1o ncilitate the
Jl:ltn'r.lflmtmnlu! r:n-urt"i:\ relating to vou, Without your sociul security number, the Department may Be unablg 1o locute any or wl recurds
:H:ﬂ'llnmg o jyou
4 S:gnmlur: ol mdmdunl who is the subjecl of the record mught

H}EM APPROVED HM.I! Nk DID3-D0N . FORM TG
EXPIRES 'J-l','il'ﬂ'l' 1 ' SFFT

EFTA01718412



Embassy of the United States of America

Office of the Legal Attaché
US Consulate

yaney

v I
Acting Coordinator

Americas, Europe, Middle East & Africa Desk
Australian Federal Police
Canberra, ACT Apstralia

03 December 2008

Re: Jeffrey Epstein

Dear Mr. -

The United States Attorney's Office, West Palm Beach, Florida, requests the assistance of the
Australian Federal Police (AFP) in delivering the enclosed letter to Ms. m DOB
I o Canberra, Australia; telephone numbers ||| an e letter

references the outcome of a Non-Prosecution Agreement entered into by the 1.8, Government and Mr. Jeffrey -

Epstein. The letter provides Ms. - with the terms of the Agreement and contact information should she
have any questions.

On 24/07/06, the Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) Palm Beach Resident Agency (PBRA) opened
an investigation involving the illegal sexual activity between multimillionaire Jeffrey Epstein and minor aged
children. At the conclusion of the sexual activity, the minors were paid sums of money ranging from $200 -
$1,000. Testimony from multiple witnesses indicate that a minor at the time, was one of
Jefirey Epstein's victims. Ms. . Epstein is currently incarcerated at
the Palm Beach County Stockade serving an 15 month prison sentence, followed by a year of house arrest. Mr.
Epstein will also be a life time registered sex offender.

If you have any questions regarding this request, please contact Assistant Legal Attaché Matthew C.
Witt, at telephune*

Sincerely yours,

Egal!ttacE

By:

!salslanl!ega Attaché

This document contains neither recommendations nor conclusions of the FBL. It is the property of the FBI and is loaned
to your agency; it and its contents are not to be distributed outside vour agency.

Enc. 1

EFTA01718413
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U.S. Department of Justice

Federal Bureau of Investigation

File No. ([ - I

25 August 2008
- S
Federal Agent

Australian Federal Police
Americas, Europe and Middle East Desk
Canberra, ACT, Australina

Dear Federal Agent -

The Miami Division of the Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) requests the
assistance of the Australian Federal Police (AFP) in delivering a Victim Notification Letter and

brochure to date of birth NN ~ho has been contacted in the past at
and/or [

On 24 July 2006, the Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI), Palm Beach Resident
Agency(PBCRA)opened an investigation involving the illegal sexual activity between multi-
millionnaire Jeffrey Epstein and minor aged children. At the conclusion of the sexual activity,
the minors were paid sums of monei ranging from $200.00-$1,000.00. Testimony from multiple

witnesses indicate hat a minor at the time, was one of Jeffrey Epstein's victims.
Mr. Epstein is believed to have had contact with during the years of 1998/99 -
2003/04. Under United States Code
Title 18 Section 3771, a victim of a crime in the United States has a number of rights which are
detailed in the enclosed letter and brochures. It is requested that the Australian Federal Police
lucate_ and deliver the enclosed letter and brochure. If you have any questions
regarding this request, please contact Assistant Legal Attache Matthew C. Witt at ||| | |

Sincerely,

o -

Assistant Legal Attache

EFTA01718414



12/07,07 FRI 15:31 FAx 1 (I OO B KIRKLAND&ELLIS LLP

KIRKLAND &.ELLIS LLP

AND ASTILIATED PARTHIREHIPS
- L]

Keanoth'W. Stamr

TM:

FAC E

December 7, 2007

Honorable R. Alexan costa
United States Attomey
United States Attorney’s Office

1811, : p.

Re: . Jefirey Epstein

Booz

Faculmila:

We propose to hav: b-uth ﬁu'hnnsa:uns tu ;ruu b]r no 1

December 10. In the mez

Kenneth W, Starr

Jay P, Lefkowitz,

cc:  Hoporable Alice Fisher, Assistant Attorney General
; First Assistant U.S. Attorney

Chicago Hong Kong JLondan Munich New York

—

San Francisco - wWaghington, D.C.

EFTA01718415



Dec=017=07  04:55pm  From=Fowler=White Burpett - T-g66 P.003/0D4  F-676

13

Affirmation
I, Jefirey E. Epstein do hereby re-affirm the Non-Proseogtion Agreement and Addendum w

rame dared Octobar 30, 2007,
phfa-
ate

F‘W °

EFTA01718416
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- KIRKLAND & ELLIS LLP

. Fax Transmittal

Please notify us immndiételr if any pages are not recelved,

THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS COMMUNICATION IS CONFIDENTIAL, MAY
BE ATTORNEY-CLIENT PRIVILEGED, MAY CONSTITUTE INSIDE INFORMATION, AND
IS INTENDED ONLY FOR THE USE OF THE ADDRESSEE. UNAUTHORIZED USE,
DISCLOSURE OR COPYING IS STRICTLY PROHIBITED. AND MAY BE UNLAWFUL.

IF YOU HAVE RECEIVED THIS COMMUNICATION IN ERROR,

PLEASE NDWMTEL? AT:

To: , _ . Company: ) Fax #: Direct #:
e fromeys once I

Hon. R. Alexander Acosta ¢ District of Florida

From: |  Dater nd Fox#: Direct #:

Kemets V.S pecemverroo 3 N

Message:

EFTA01718417
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Privileged and Confidential
Attorney-Client Work Product

Al STON&BIRD 117 | | |

PROCEDURAL HISTORY

Atlanta * Charlotte * Dallas » MNew York * Resaurch Triangle = Washington, DC N
i wwwialslon.com

e

EFTA01718418



VICTIMS

El

: ge: 14
Sexual Contact with Epstein:

(Epstein)
watched as Epstein
-Epstein introduced unidentified female who while :

Epstein had with the unidentitied female
-Epstein
m Age: 17

Sexual Contact with Epstein:

-Epstein touched

Sexual Contact with Epstein:
Epstein)

Epsei [ S

(girlfriend/assistant)

-Epstein introduced

to - where they engaged in the -

Sexual Contact with Eistcin:

EFTA01718419



Sexual Contact with Epstein:
Epstein)

by Epstein

watched as Epstein engaged in— with-

(gu]ﬁ iend/assistant)

Sexua! Contact with bpstcm

Sexual Contact with Epstein:

-i Eiblean i

Sel{ua Contact with Epstmn

Epstein)
-Epstein

Seaua Contact with Epstem

" r—

EFTA01718420



Sexual Contact with Epstein:
Epstein

Sexual Contact with Epstein:

Epstein
-Epstein

Sexual Contact with Epstein:
S - QR hcn she was 17 years of age

Sexual Contact with Epstein:

-

Sexual Contact with Epstein:
Epstein

Sexual Contact with Epstein:

o

Sexual Contact with Epstein:
(Epstein
Epstein instructed

|
EFTA01718421



M Age: 16

Sexual Contact with Epstein:

-Magturbationi Ei stein\‘

***AGE is the age the Victim first encountered Epstein

EFTA01718422




12/11/2007 11:37 FAX aﬂﬂﬂ‘#ﬂ'ﬂﬂ

KIRKLAND & ELLIS LLP

AMEEE AR UATLED AN NE S T

Kennglh W, Starr
I'o Call Winiker Crectly _ FrGSuiie:

gy RFREG(A &fem

December 11, 2007

vineacsiv. S

[Honorable R, Alexander Acosta
Linited Staics Anomey

Lintted Stales Alorney’™s Oflice
Southern District of Florida

Muami, IFI, 33132
Ke: JelTrey Epsicin
[ear Alex:

As we diseussed during our telephone conversations on bolh I*riclay and Monday

{vesterday ). we are submilling two scparate letiers that address our broad arcas ol deep concern

in this matter:

We are grateful for vour courlesy m agrecing Lo receive and consider these submissions, and then
o nee] 1o diseuss them,

As you undertake your study and reflection. Kindly allow me 10 make this pivotal point:

Chicago Hong Kong London Munich MNow York San Francisco Washingion, D .G

EFTA01718423



JEFFREY EPSTEIN
Timeline-Summary

2/20/2007 veeting (vs: N . M - EE.

B rEF: Lilly Sanchez and Gerald Lefcourt)

6/26/2007--Meeting (US:
. I DEF: Alan

Dershowitz; Roy Black, Gerald Lefcourt and Lilly Sanchez).

7/26/2007--veeting (vs: (S I

(conference call),
— and ()

(US:

r

7/31/2007--Meeting
and

DEF: Roy Black, Gerald Lefcourt and Lilly Sanchez).

8/31/2007--Meeting (US: , I
R

9/7/2007--Meeting (US: Alexander Acosta,

I o:F: Kenneth Starr, Jay

Lefkowitz, Lilly Sanchez).

EFTA01718424




9/12/2007--yeeting (us: (S I --: B

DEF: Jay Lefkowitz, Gerald Lefcourt and Jack
Goldberger, STATE OF FLORIDA: Barry Krisher and Lanna
Belochlavek) .

9/18/2007--Rescheduled date for computer hearing. (Hearing
initially set for 9/13/2007)

9/24/2007--Non-Prosecution Agreement signed.

9/25/2007--8cheduled date for Federal Indictment.

EFTA01718425



JEFFREY EPSTEIN
Timeline-Summary

2/20/2007--Meeting (US: T o<

- DEF: Lilly Sanchez and Gerald Lefcourt).

6/26/2007--Meeting (US:

DEF: Alan
Dershowitz, Roy Black, Gerald Lefcourt and Lilly Sanchez).

7/26/2007--Meeting (US:

kcmnferenca Ldll}

’ -

and (S

7/31/2007--Meeting (US:

and
efcourt and Lilly Sanchez)

8/31/2007--Meeting (US:
aness - SR

9/7/2007--Meeting (US: Alexander Acosta, -

B 0:F: Kenneth Starr, Jay

Lefkowitz, Lilly Sanchez).

DEF: Roy Black, Gerald L

EFTA01718426



9/12/2007--Meeting (us: (NN I --: B
F DEF: Jay Lefkowitz, Gerald Lefcourt and Jack

Go erger, STATE OF FLORIDA: Barry Krisher and Lanna
Belohlavek) .

9/18/2007--Rescheduled date for computer hearing. (Hearing
initially set for 9/13/2007).

9/24/2007--Non-Prosecution Agreement signed.

8/25/2007--8cheduled date for Federal Indictment.

EFTA01718427



Timeline-Summary

2/2012007--Meeting (US: [ [ | | N IS -~ I ox+: ity Sanchez

and Gerald Lefcourt).

6/26/2007--Meeting (US:
DEF: Alan Dershowitz, Roy Black, Gerald Lefcourt and Lilly Sanchez).

7/26/2007--Meeting (US:

call), N

ST - —
DEF: Roy Black, Gerald Lefcourt and Lilly Sanchez}

-8f31-f2ﬂﬂ?--?~iﬂeting ws: I S S

9/7/2007--Meeting (US: Alexander Acosta,mF s
I DFF: Kenneth Starr, Jay Lefkowitz, Lilly Sanchez).

0/122007-Mecting (Us: [ O - N o=+ -
Lefkowitz, Gerald Lefcourt and Jack Goldberger, STATE OF FLORIDA: Barry Krisher and
Lanna Belohlavek).

(conference

9/18/2007—Scheduled date for computer hearing.
9/24/2007-Non-Prosecution Agreement signed.

0/25/2007—-8cheduled date for Federal Indictment.

EFTA01718428



U.S. Department of Justice

&N

United States Attorney
Southern District of Florida

DELIVERY BY FACSIMILE
Jay P. Lefkowitz, Esq.
Kirkland & Ellis LLP

New York, New York 10022-4675
Re: Jeffrey Epstein

Dear Jay:

;!‘mnu’ !! !!!!2—2! 11l

acyimue’

MNovember 13, 2007

R e

I write in response to your letter of November 8, 2007.

Most importantly, I want to re-iterate

. Please advise me of the new date and fime so that someone from our

Office can be present.

Your letter asserts that

EFTA01718429



JaY P. LEFKOWITZ, ESQ.
MNOVEMBER 13, 2007
PAGE2 OF 3

Finally, as to the matters related to

EFTA01718430



Jay P. LEFKOWITZ, ESQ.
MNOVEMEBER 13, 2007
PAGE3 OF 3

Lastly, the statement at the end of your letter that you

Please clarify your position on this point.

Sincerely,

R. Alexander Acosta
United States Attorney

First Assistant United States Attorney

ce: R. Alexander Acosta, U.S. Attormey

sus. [

EFTA01718431



KIRKLAND &  ELLIS LLP

AND AFTILIATED PARTHEESHIFS

Jay P. Lefkowitz, P.C. New VM . HEw 1ol 4511 ’
To Call Writer Digectly: _ Facsimile:
wwnw, kirkland.com

November 8, 2007

VIA E-MAIL

!nite! !tates Attorney’s Office

Southern District of Florida

ami, Florda 33132-2111

Re: Jeffrey Epstein

dated NU‘;"EI'III)EI 5, 2007. I want to make clear at

the oulset that

want to a ; ol the points yvou raise 1n your letier.

Chicaga Haong Kong Landan Los Angeles Munich San Franclsco Washington, D.C.

EFTA01718432
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Page 2

KIRKLAND & ELLIS LLP
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KIRKLAND & ELLIS LLP

!ﬂvam!ar !, !DEI'?

Page 3

I look forward to continuing to work with your Office to resolve any outstanding issues,
and [ sincerely anticipate a conclusion of this matter in the very near future.

Sincerely,

Jay'P. Leflowitz

EFTA01718434



U.S. Department of Justice

United States Attorney
Southern District of Florida

ﬂ!r’fm:r', FL 337/32-2111

! I'i!.'.i]'i'n'n'.f e’

MNovember 5, 2007

DELIVERY BY FACSIMILE
Jay P. Lefkowitz, Esq.
Kirkland & Ellis LLP

New York, New York 10022-4675

Re: Jeffrey Epstein

Dear Jay:

EFTA01718435




-

Jay P, LEFKOWITZ, ESQ.
MNOVEMBER 5, 2007
PAGEZ2OF2

ce: R, Alexander Acosta, U.S. Attorney

By:

Sincerely,

R. Alexander Acosta
United States Attorney

!-11'51’: !ssustunt United States Attorney

EFTA01718436



FW: Epstein settlement agreement Page 1 of 2

b |
FW: Epstein settlement agreement

I ss) I o 5o o)

Sent: Friday, November 02, 2007 9:55 AM

o E— DRAFT

Importance: High

FYL. — It went out this morning.
Asgsistant U.!‘. Attorney

me:IFUSAFLSJ
: Fr ovember 02, 2007 9:51 AM

Dear Lanna:

I was just informed that a case disposition conference has been set in the Epstein case on Janua

I also would appreciate it if you could send me a copy of the plea agreement, the Information that you
plan to file (if it hasn’t been filed already), and any factual proffer or other documents related to the
plea. Please also let me know the date and time of the plea and sentencing so that someone from our
office can attend and insure Mr. Epstein’s compliance with the terms of his federal non-prosecution
agreement.

If you need any information regarding the federal investigation, or if you have any questions about the
terms of the federal non-prosecution agreement, please do not hesitate to contact me at the number
below or Marie in the West Palm Beach office.

Thank you,

First !smsla_n! ”mted States Attorney
Hmrrn, En a33liz

I . {57207
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FW: Epstein settlement agreement Page 2 of 2
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Sent: Monda ciober 29, :

To: USAFLS)

Subject: Epstein settlement agreement

Good evening. I am the ASA with the Epstein case in Palm Beach County. The negotiated settlement
is a definite go.

was set for the first week of January, but the plea and sentence will defimtely occur before the January
4th date that was agreed on by all for the sentencing,.

If you have any questions, please contact me at _m‘ _

Lanna Belohlavek

I 157200
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

Case No:

18 U.S.C. § 371

18 U.S.C. § 2423(e)
18 U.S.C. § 2423(d)
18 U.S.C. § 1591(a)(2)
18 U.S.C. § 2422(b)
18 U.S.C. § 2423(b)
18 U.S.C. § 1591(a)(1)

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

V8.

JEFFREY EPSTEIN,

Defendants.

INDICTMENT

The Grand Jury charges that:

BACKGROUND

At all times relevant to this Indictment:

1. Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN employed defendants || RNAMTTT
B - S - S - o, anong othr hings,

services as personal assistants.
2. Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN owned a property located at | | D P2

Beach, Florida, in the Southern District of Florida.
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3. Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN was the principal owner of JEGE, INC., a Delaware
corporation. JEGE, INC.’s sole business activities related to the operation and ownership of a
Boeing 727-31 aircraft bearing tail number N90SJE.

4. Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN served as president, sole director, and sole
shareholder of JEGE, INC., and had the power to direct all of its operations.

5. Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN was a principal owner of Hyperion Air, Inc., a
Delaware corporation. Hyperion Air, Inc.’s sole business activities related to the operation and
ownership of a Gulfstream G-1159B aircraft bearing tail number N909JE.

6. Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN served as president, sole director, and sole
shareholder of Hyperion Air, Inc., and had the power to direct all of its operations.

7. Pursuant to Florida Statutes Section 794.035, a “person 24 years of age or older
who engages in sexual activity with a person 16 or 17 years of age commits a felony of the
second degree.” For purposes of “this section, ‘sexual activity” means oral, anal, or vaginal
penetration by, or union with, the sexual organ of another; however, sexual activity does not
include an act done for a bona fide medical purpose.” Florida Statutes Section 794.021 states
that “ignorance of the age [of the victim] is no defense,” and that neither “misrepresentation
of age by [the victim] nor a bona fide belief that such person 1s over the specified age [shall]
be a defense.”

8. Pursuant to Florida Statutes Sections 800.04(5)(a) and 800.04(5)(c)(2), an adult
“who intentionally touches in a lewd or lascivious manner the breasts, genitals, genital area,

or buttocks, or the clothing covering them, of a person less than 16 years of age, or forces or
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entices a person under 16 years of age to so touch the perpetrator, commits lewd or lascivious
molestation,” which is a felony of the second degree if the victim is 12 years of age or older
but less than 16 years of age.

9. Pursuant to Florida Statutes Sections 800.04(6)(a) and 800.04(6)(b), an adult “who
[i]ntentionally touches a person under 16 years of age in a lewd or lascivious manner or [s]olicits a
person under 16 years of age to commit a lewd or lascivious act commits lewd or lascivious
conduct,” which is a felony of the second degree.

10.  Pursuant to Florida Statutes Sections 800.04(7)(a) and 800.04(7)(c), an adult “who:
(1) [i]ntentionally masturbates; (2) [i]ntentionally exposes the genitals in a lewd or lascivious
manner; or (3) [1]ntentionally commits any other sexual act that does not involve actual physical or
sexual contact with the victim, including, but not limited to . . . the simulation of any act involving
sexual activity in the presence of a victim who is less than 16 years of age, commits lewd or
lascivious exhibition,” which is a felony of the second degree.

11.  Pursuant to Florida Statutes Section 800.04(2), “[n]either the victim’s lack of chastity
nor the victim’s consent is a defense to the crimes proscribed by [Section 800.04].”

12.  Pursuant to Florida Statutes Section 800.04(3), “[t]he perpetrator’s ignorance of the
victim's age, the victim’s n;isrcpresn:ntatinn of his or her age, or the perpetrator’s bona fide belief of
the victim’s age cannot be raised as a defense in a prosecution under [Section 800.04].”

13.  Pursuant to Florida Statutes Section 800.02, a “person who commits any unnatural
and lascivious act with another person commits a misdemeanor of the second degree.”

14.  Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN was over the age of 24 and did not have any medical

licensure.
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15.  During the period of their involvement with the Defendants, Jane Does # 3 and 10

attemir:d_ in Palm Beach County.

16. During the periods of their invelvement with the Defendants, Jane Does # 5,6, 8, 12,

13, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, and 19 attendec NN - - Beach County.

17.  During the period of her involvement with the Defendants, Jane Doe #7 attended

18.  During the period of her involvement with the Defendants, Jane Doe #9 attendedi R

_in Palm Beach County.

19. During the period of her involvement with the Defendants, Jane Doe #11 attended

IR - ¢ Beach Courty

COUNT 1
(Conspiracy: 18 U.S.C. § 371)

20.  Paragraphs 1 through 19 of this Indictment are re-alleged and incorporated by
reference as though fully set forth herein.

21. From at least as early as 2001, the exact date being unknown to the Grand Jury,
through in or around October 2005, in Palm Beach County, in the Southern District of Florida, and
elsewhere, the defendants,

JEFFREY EPSTEIN,

and

did knowingly and willfully combine, conspire, confederate and agree with each other and

with others known and unknown to commit an offense against the United States, that is, to
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use a facility or means of interstate or foreign commerce to knowingly persuade, induce, and
entice individuals who had not attained the age of 18 years to engage in prostitution, in
violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 2422(b).

Purpose and Object of the Conspiracy

22.  Itwasthe purpose and object of the conspiracy to procure females under the age 0f 18
to travel to B - Beoch, Florida so that JEFFREY EPSTEIN could, in exchange
for money, engage in lewd conduct with those minor females in order to satisfy JEFFREY
EPSTEIN’s prurient interests.

Manner and Means

23, The manner and means by which the defendants and other participants songht to

accomplish the purpose and object of the conspiracy included the following:

‘ (a) It was part of the conspiracy that Defendants _ -
B - T -~ I o cortact minos females vi

the use of cellular and other telephones to arrange appointments for minor females to travel tl::--
- to allow Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN to engage in lewd conduct with them.

(b) It was further a part of the conspiracy that Defendants JEFFREY EPSTEIN,
- -/ S o1 make payments to, or
cause payments to be made to, minor females in exchange for engaging in lewd conduct.

(c) It was further a part of the conspiracy that Defendants JEFFREY EPSTEIN,

T ———

other minor females to engage in lewd conduct with Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN.
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(d) It was further a part of the conspiracy that Defendants JEFFREY EPSTEIN,
_ and-- a'k/a ‘_ would make payments to, or
cause payments to be made to, the recruiters for bringing additional minor females to -
-m engage in lewd conduct with Defendant JEFFREYI EPSTEIN.

(e) It was further a part of the conspiracy that Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN

would pay minor females to engage in lewd conduct with Defendant _ to

satisfy Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN’s prurient interests.

Overt Acts
24, In furtherance of this conspiracy and to effect the objects thereof, there was
committed by at least one of the co-conspirators herein, at least one of the following overt acts,

among others, in the Southern District of Florida:

(1) 2001, Defendant [ 12d 7ane Doe #2 from the kitchen of

_ upstairs to Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN’s bedroom at -

(2)  Inthe beginning 0of 2001, Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN engaged in sexual
intercourse with Jane Doe #1, who was then a seventeen-year-old girl, in the presence of Jane
Doe #2, who was then a fourteen-year-old girl.

(3) In or around 2001, Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN masturbated in the
presence of Jane Doe #2, who was then a fourteen-year-old girl.

(4)  Inoraround 2001, Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN made a payment of $300

to Jane Doe #2.
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(5)  Inoraround 2001, Defendant_ placed a telephone call to a

telephone used by Jane Doe #2 to make an appointment for Jane Doe #2 to travel to -

(6)  In or around 2002, Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN paid $400 to Jane
Doe #2, who was then fifteen years’ old, tc-—
(7)  Imoraround 2002, Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN asked Jane Doe #2 if
she had any younger friends who would be interested in engaging in similar activities

with him.

(8) Imor arounci 2003, Defendant _ took nude photographs of

Jane Doe #2, who was then a sixteen-year-old girl.

9  Inoraround 2003, Defendant || :2d< 2 payment of $500 to

Jane Doe #2 in exchange for posing for nude photographs.

(10) In or around 2003, Defendant _ told Jane Doe #2 that

Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN had a&kﬂd- to take nude photographs of Jane Doe
2.

(11) In or around 2003, Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN masturbated in the
prﬂs-ence of Jane Doe #2, who was then a sixteen-year-old girl.

(12) In oraround 2003, Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN made a payment of $300

to Jane Doe #2, who was then a sixteen-year-old girl.
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(13)  Inoraround 2003, Defendant || 2ced 2 telephone call to a
telephone used by Jane Doe #2 to make an appointment for Jane Doe #2 to travel to -

(14) Inoraround 2003, JEFFREY EPSTEIN engaged in sexual intercourse
with an unidentified female in the presence of Jane Doe #2, who was then a sixteen-
year-old girl.

(15) Inoraround 2003, Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN paid $300 to Jane Doe #2,
who was then a sixteen-year-old girl, for allowing an unidentified female to perform oral sex
on Jane Doe #2 in EPSTEIN’s presence.

(16) Inoraround the spring of 2003, Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN masturbated
in the presence of Jane Doe #4, who was then a fifteen-year-old girl.

(17)  Inor around the spring of 2003, Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN made a
payment of $200 to Jane Doe #4.

(18)  Inoraround 2004, Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN directed Jane Doe #4, who

was then a sixteen- or seventeen-year-old girl, to _
(19)  Inoraround 2004, Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN ||| EEEGTGNG

_of an adult female in the presence of Jane Doe #4, who was then a sixteen- or
seventeen-year-old girl.
(20)  In or around 2004, Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN made a payment of $200

to Jane Doe #4.
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(21) Inoraround 2004, Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN instructed Jane Doe #4 to

(22)  Inoraround 2004, Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN||EGTGTGNGN

_::f Jane Doe #4, who was then a sixteen- or seventeen-year-old girl.

(23) In or around the first half of 2004, Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN

offered to pay Jane Doe #6 to bring additional girls tc-_
(24) Tn or around the first half of 2004, Defendant ||| T 2 -

payment of $200 to Jane Doe #6 for recruiting a minor female to travel to _

(25) In or around the first half of 2004, Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN

_anc Doe #8, who was then a seventeen-year-old girl.

(26) On or about March 11, 2004, Defendants JEFFREY EPSTEIN, [N

S - S e o [ - v

Beach County, Florida aboard the Gulfstream aircraft owned by Hyperion Air, Inc.

(27) Ioraround March 2004, Defendants JEFFREY EPSTEIN and [l
- caused Jane Doe #5, who was then a seventeen-year-old girl, to travel to

B ¢\ Beach, Florida.

(28) Inoraround March 2004, Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN masturbated in the
presence of Jane Doe #5, who was then a seventeen-year-old girl.

(29) In or around March 2004, Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN made a

payment of $200 to Jane Doe #5.
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(30)  On or about May 1, 2004, Defendants JEFFREY EPSTEIN, [}

- and_ traveled from New York, New York to Palm

Beach County, Florida aboard the Boeing 727 aircraft owned by JEGE, INC.

(31)  Onorabout May 14, 2004, Defendants JEFFREY EPSTEIN, [

- and _ traveled from Canada to Palm Beach

County, Florida aboard the Boeing 727 aircraft owned by JEGE, INC.

(32) On or about May 14, 2004, Defendant _ placed a

telephone call to a telephone used by Jane Doe #6.

(33)  In or around May 2004, Defendant ||| 24 720 Doe #6 from
the kitchen ﬂt_ upstairs to Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN’s bedroom at
358 El Brillo Way.

(34) In or around May 2004, Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN masturbated in the
presence of Jane Doe #6, who was then a sixteen-year-old girl.

(35) Inor around May 2004, Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN made a payment of

£200 to Jane Doe #6.

(36) On or about June 11, 2004, Defendants JEFFREY EPSTEIN and

B -vclcd from Chicago, lllinois to Palm Beach County, Florida

aboard the Gulfstream aircraft owned by Hyperion Air, Inc.

(37)  On orabout June 11,2004, Defendant [ made one or

more telephone calls to a telephone used by Jane Doe #6.

10
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(38) On orabout June 20, 2004, Defendant_ made one or

more telephone calls to a telephone used by Jane Doe #6.

(39)  Onorabout June 20, 2004, Defendants JEFFREY EPSTEIN andjjj}
B i c)cd from the U.S. Virgin Islands to Palm Beach County, Florida
aboard the Boeing 727 aircraft owned by JEGE, INC.

(40)  On or about July 4, 2004, Defendants JEFFREY EPSTEIN, [

- and_ traveled from Aspen, Colorado to Palm

Beach County, Florida aboard the Gulfstream aircraft owned by Hyperion Air, Inc.

(41) On or about July 4, 2004, Defendant _ made one or

more telephone calls to a telephone used by Jane Doe #7.

(42) Imoraround July 2004, Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN led Jane Doe #3, who
was then a fifieen-year-old girl, and Jane Doe #7, who was then a sixteen-years-old girl, from
the kitchen of _ upstairs to Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN’s bedroom at
]

(43) In or around July 2004, Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN masturbated in the
presence-of Jane Doe #7, who was then a sixteen-year-old girl.

(44) In or around July 2004, Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN instructed Jane Doe

#7, who was then a sixteen-year-old girl, to_
(45) Inoraround July 2004, Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN ||| D

Jane Doe #7, who was then a sixteen-year-old girl.

11
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(46) In or around July 2004, Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN made a payment of
$200 to Jane Doe #7.

(47) Inoraround July 2004, Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN told Jane Doe #7 that
if she reported to anyone what had occurred at Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN’s home, bad
things could happen to her.

(48) Tn or around July 2004, Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN e
- Jane Doe #8, who was then a seventeen-year-old girl.

(49) In or around July 2004, Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN masturbated in the

presence of Jane Doe #8, who was then a seventeen-year-old girl.
(50) In or around July 2004, Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN made a payment of

$200 to Jane Doe #8.

(51} Omnorabout July 15, 2004, Defendant _ placed one or

more telephone calls to a telephone used by Jane Doe #7.

(52) Onorabout July 15, 2004, Defendant _ placed one or

more telephone calls to a telephone used by Jane Doe #8.

(53) Onor about July 16, 2004, Defendant _ placed one or

more telephone calls to a telephone used by Jane Doe #7.

(54) On or about July 16, 2004, Defendants JEFFREY EPSTEIN, [}

T p——

Palm Beach County, Florida aboard the Gulfstream aircraft owned by Hyperion Air,

Ine.

12
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(55)  On or about July 16, 2004, Defendant ||| G caused Jane

Doe #8 to make one or more telephone calls to a telephone used by Jane Doe #9.

(56) On or about July 17, 2004, Defendant ||| G ccd one or

more telephone calls to a telephone used by Jane Doe #8.

(57) Onorabout July 18, 2004, Defendant _ placed one or
more telephone calls to a telephone used by Jane Doe #6.

(58)  On orabout July 18, 2004, Defendan laced one or
more telephone calls to a telephone used by Jane Doe #8.

(59) Onorabout July 22, 2004, Defendant || 2ced one or
more telephone calls to a telephone used by Jane Doe #6.

(60) On or about July 22, 2004, Defendant _ placed a

telephone call to a telephone used by Jane Doe #8.

(61) On or about July 22, 2004, I}cfﬂndant— placed one or

more telephone calls to a telephone used by Jane Doe #9.

(62) On or about July 22, 2004, Defendants JEFFREY EPSTEIN, [

- and_ traveled from the U.S. Virgin Islands to

Palm Beach County, Florida aboard the Boeing 727 aircraft owned by JEGE, INC.

(63) Inoraround the last half of 2004, Defendants JEFFREY EPSTEIN and

B oooccd in oral sex and sexual intercourse in the presence

of Jane Doe #8, who was then a seventeen-year-old girl.

13
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(64) Tn or around the last half of 2004, Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN [}

—J ane Doe #8, who was then a seventeen-year-old girl.

(65) In or around the last half of 2004, Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN made a

payment of $300 or more to Jane Doe #8.

(66) - In or around the last half of 2004, Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN
_Jane Doe #9, who was then a seventeen-
year-old girl.

(67) Inoraround the last half of 2004, Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN made
a payment of $200 to Jane Doe #9.

(68) In or around the last half of 2004, Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN
masturbated in the presence of Jane Doe #10, who was then a seventeen-year-old girl.

(69) In or around the last half of 2004, Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN -
-I ane Doe #10, who was then a seventeen-year-old girl.

(70)  Inoraround the last half of 2004, Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN attempted
t::r_] ane Doe #10, who was then a seventeen-year-
old girl.

(71)  In or around the last half of 2004, Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN made a

payment of $200 to Jane Doe #10.

(72) In or around the last half of 2004, Defendant (|| G =

Jane Doe #13 from the kitchen :}f_ upstairs to Defendant JEFFREY

EPSTEIN’s bedroom at ||| G

14
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(73) Inoraround the last half of 2004, Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN asked Jane
Doe #13 to provide her telephone number.

(74)  Inor around the last half of 2004, Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN instructed

Jane Doe #13, who was then a seventeen-year-old girl, to _

(75) In or around the last half of 2004, Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN |
masturbated in the presence of Jane Doe #13, who was then a seventeen-year old girl.

(76) In or around the last half of 2004, Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN made a
payment of $300 to Jane Doe #13.

(77) On or about August 19, 2004, Defendants JEFFREY EPSTEIN and

I < - o S = Beach Couy,

Florida aboard the Boeing 727 aircraft owned by JEGE, INC.

(78)  On or about August 21, 2004, Defendant ||| EGzoiaced one

or more calls to a telephone used by Jane Doe #11.

(79) On or about August 25, 2004, Defendants JEFFREY EPSTEIN,

I - I . o [ v

Beach County, Florida aboard the Boeing 727 aircraft owned by JEGE, INC.

(80) In or around the last quarter of 2004, Defendant (|| EGNGN

caused Jane Doe #5 to place a telephone call to Jane Doe #12.

(81) In or around the last quarter of 2004, Defendants JEFFREY EPSTEIN and

_ caunsed Jane Doe #5 to travel with Jane Doe #12 to _

15
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(82) In or around the last quarter of 2004, Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN
masturbated in the presence of Jane Doe #12, who was then a sixteen-year-old girl.

(83) Inoraround the last quarter of 2004, Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN-

_I ane Doe #12, who was then a sixteen-year-old girl.

(84) Inoraround the last quarter of 2004, Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN made a
payment of $200 to Jane Doe #12.

(85) In or around the last quarter of 2004, Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN
caused a payment to be made to Jane Doe #5 for recruiting Jane Doe #12 to travel to

(86) On orabout October 2, 2004, Defendants JEFFREY EPSTEIN, [}

- and _ traveled from the U.S. Virgin Islands to

Palm Beach County, Florida aboard the Boeing 727 aircraft owned by JEGE, INC.

(87) On or about October 29, 2004, Defendants JEFFREY EPSTEIN,

- to Palm Beach County, Florida aboard the Gulfstream aircraft owned by
Hyperion Air, INC.

(88) In or around the end of 2004, Defendant _ led Jane
Doe #19, who was then a sixteen-year-old girl, from the kjtgh en Gf—,
upstairs to Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN’s bedroom at _

(89) Inoraround the end of 2004, Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN masturbated in

the presence of Jane Doe #19, who was then a sixteen-year-old girl.

16
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~(90) Inor am-und the end of 2004, Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN made a payment
of $200 to Jane Doe #19.

(91) In or around the end of 2004, Defendant _ placed a

telephone call to a telephone used by Jane Doe #5 to arrange for Jane Doe #19 to travel to

(92) On or about November 10, 2004, Defendants JEFFREY EPSTEIN and

B vl o [N to P:!m Beach County, Florida

aboard the Gulfstream aircraft owned by Hyperion Air, Ine.

(93) On or about November 18, 2004, Defendants JEFFREY EPSTEIN,
I S - S - S
_ traveled frc-m_ to Palm Beach County, Florida

aboard the Gulfstream aircraft owned by Hyperion Air, Inc.

(94)  Inoraround December 2004, Defendant _ caused Jane

Doe #12 to place a telephone call to Jane Doe #15.

(95) In or around December 2004, Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN made a
payment of $100 to Jane Doe #12 for bringing Jane Doe #15 to _

(96) Inoraround December 2004, Dafeﬂdant_ed Jane Doe#15
from the kitchen ||| u0stairs to Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN's bedroom

(97) Inoraround December 20004, Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN masturbated in

the presence of Jane Doe #15, who was then a sixteen-year-old girl.

17
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(98)  In or around December 2004, Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN [
- Jane Doe #15, who was then a sixteen-year-old girl.

(99) In or around December 2004, Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN -
B )21 Doe #15, who was then a sixteen-year-old girl.

(100) In or around December 2004, Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN made a
pﬂ.}ﬂ]‘lﬂnllﬂf $200 to Jane Doe #15, who was then a sixteen-year-old girl.

(101) On or about December 3, 2004, Defendants JEFFREY EPSTEIN,
R ——
New York, New York to Palm Beach County, Florida aboard the Boeing 727 aircraft
owned by JEGE, INC.

(102) On or about December 4, 2004, Defendant _ provided a
written message to Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN regarding Jane Does # 8 and 9, stating:

“[Jane Doe #9] would like to work @ 4:00 pm if possible. [[Jane Doe #8] is scheduled for

5:00 today.] the movie is @ 7:30”.

(103) On or about December 6, 2004, Defendant _ placed

one or more calls to a telephone used by Jane Doe #14.

(104) On or about December 13, 2004, Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN
traveled from the U.S. Virgin Islands to Palm Beach County, Florida, aboard the

Gulfstream aircraft owned by Hyperion Air, Inc.

18
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(105) On or about December 17, 2004, Defendants JEFFREY EPSTEIN and

County, Florida aboard the Gulfstream aircraft owned by Hyperion Air, Inc.

(106) On or about December 18, 2004, Defcndant_ caused

Jane Doe #12 to place one or more telephone calls to a telephone used by Jane Doe
#15.

(107) In or around the last half of 2004 or January 2005, Defendant||
IS S . D #, o v
then a seventeen-year-old girl, in the presence of Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN.

(108) In or around the last half of 2004 or January 2005, Defendant -
_ and Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN performed sexual acts in the
presence of Jane Doe #9, who was then a seventeen-year-old girl.

(109) In or around the end of 2004 and the beginning of 2005, Defendant
JEFFREY EPSTEIN _ Jane Doe #13, who was then a seventeen-
year-old girl.

(110) On or about December 23, 2004, Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN

caused a Western Union wire transfer order to be sent to Jane Doe #13.

(111) On or about December 29, 2004, Defendant _ placed a

telephone call to a telephone used by Jane Doe #8.

19
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(112) On or about December 30, 2004, Defmdant_used a credit

card to purchase Broadway tickets as an eighteenth birthday gift for Jane Doe #8.

(113) Onorabout January 1,2005, Defendants JEFFREY EPSTEIN, [

R ——

to Palm Beach County, Florida aboard the Gulfstream aircraft owned by Hyperion
Air, Inc.

(114) In or around the first quarter of 2005, Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN

I Do 13, who wasthen  seventeen-

year-old girl.

(115) In or around the first quarter of 2005, Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN
engaged in sexual infercourse with Jane Doe #13, who was then a seventeen-year-old girl.

(116) In or around the first quarter of 2005, Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN
performed oral sex on Jane Doe #13, who was then a seventeen-year-old girl.

(117) Inoraround the first quarter of 2005, Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN madea
payment of $600 to Jane Doe #13.

(118) Inoraround the first quarter of 2005, Defendants JEFFREY EPSTEIN
and _ caused Jane Doe #17 to place a telephone call to Jane Doe #18

to ask her to travel to_

(119) Inoraround the first quarter of 2005, Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN made a

payment to Jane Doe #17 for recruiting Jane Doe #18 to travel to_

20
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(120) In or around the first quarter of 2005, Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN
masturbated in the presence of Jane Doe #18, who was then a sixteen-year-old girl.

(121) In or around the first quarter of 2005, Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN
instructed Jane Doe #18, who was then a sixteen-year-old girl, to remove all of her clothing,

(122) Inoraround the first quarter of 2005, Defendant JEFFREY EPS TEIN-

—Jane Doe #18, who was then a sixteen-year-old girl.

(123) Inoraround the first quarter of 2005, Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN made a

payment of $200 to Jane Doe #18, who was then a sixteen-year-old girl.

(124) Inoraround the first half of 20035, Defendant _nade a

payment of $200 to Jane Doe #6 for recruiting another minor female to travel I,'U.

(125) In or around the first half of 2005, Dafendﬂnt_ led

Jane Doe #14 from the kitchen u_ upstairs to Defendant JEFFREY

EPSTEIN’s bedroom at _

(126) Inoraroundthe first half of 2005, Defmdant-JEFFREY EPSTEIN instructed

Jane Doe #14, who was then a seventeen-year-old girl, to _

(127) In or around the first half of 2005, Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN

I - D

(128) In or around the first half of 2005, Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN made a

payment of $200 to Jane Doe #14.
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(129) In or around the first nine months of 2005, Defendant JEFFREY
EPSTEIN masturbated in the presence of Jane Doe #17, who was then a seventeen-
year-old girl.

(130) In or around the first nine months of 2005, Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN
_ Jane Doe #17, who was then a seventeen-year-
old girl.

(131) In or around the first nine months of 2005, Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN
asked Jane Doe #17, who was then a seventeen-year-old girl, how old she was.

(132) In or around the first nine months of 2005, Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN
engaged in sexual activity with Deft:ndant_ in the presence of Jane
Doe #17, who was then a seventeen-year-old girl.

(133) In or around the first nine months of 2005, Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN
asked Jane Doe #17, who was then a seventeen-year-old girl,_Defendanl

(134) On or about January 6, 2005, Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN traveled

frorn_ to Palm Beach County, Florida, aboard the Gulfstream

aircraft owned by Hyperion Air, Inc.

(135) On or about January 7, 2005, Defendant - - a'k/a
‘_ placed one or more calls to a telephone used by Jane Doe

#14.
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(136) On or about January 8, 2005, Defendant _ placed one or

more telephone calls to a telephone used by Jane Doe #13.

(137) On or about January 9, 2005, Defmdant-- alk/a ‘-

- placed one or more telephone calls to a telephone used by Jane Doe #13.

(138) On or about January 14, 2003, Dﬁfcndant_ placed a

telephone call to a telephone used by Jane Doe #4.

(139) On or about January 14, 2005, Defendants JEFFREY EPSTEIN,
I S A - S -
_ traveled from thé U.S. Virgin Islands to Palm Beach County,

Florida, aboard the Boeing 727 aircraft owned by JEGE, INC.

(140) On or about January 14, 2003, Defendant_ placed one or

more telephone calls to a telephone used by Jane Doe #9.

(141) On or about January 19, 2005, Defendants JEFFREY EPSTEIN, [

I - S - S

traveled from New York, New York to Palm Beach County, Florida aboard the Boeing 727

aircraft owned by JEGE, INC.

(142) On or about January 27, 2005, Defendant ||| NGB =~ B

- placed one or more telephone calls to a telephone used by Jane Doe #9.

(143) On or about January 28, 20035, Defcndant_ placed one or

more telephone calls to a telephone used by Jane Doe #9.

23

EFTA01718461



(144) Inoraround the February 2005, Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN caused

a payment of $200 to be made to Jane Doe #8 for recruiting Jane Doe #14 to travel to

(145) In or around February 2005, Defendants JEFFREY EPSTEIN and

— caused Jane Doe #10 to recruit Jane Doe #11 to travel to-

(146) Inor around February 2005, Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN masturbated in

the presence of Jane Doe #11, who was then a seventeen-year-old girl.

(147) In or around February 2005, Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN [}

_ Jane Doe #11, who was then a seventeen-year-old girl.

(148) Inoraround February 2005, Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN made a payment

of $200 to Jane Doe #11.

(149) On or about February 1, 2005, Defendant _ placed one or

more telephone calls to a telephone used by Jane Doe #13.

(150) On or about February 1, 2005, Defn:ndant_ placed

- one or more telephone calls to a telephone used by Jane Doe #9.

(151) On or about February 3, 2005, Defendants JEFFREY EPSTEIN,

C R p———

Palm Beach County, Florida, aboard the Boeing 727 aircraft owned by JEGE, INC.

(152) On or about February 4, 2005, Defandant_ placed one or

more telephone calls to a telephone used by Jane Doe #14.
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(153) Onor about February 6, 2005, Defendants JEFFREY EPSTEIN and [ D
- caused Jane Doe #5 to make one or more telephone calls to Jane Doe #16.

(154) Onorabout February 6, 2005, Defendants JEFFREY EPSTEIN and [
- caused Jane Doe #5 to transport Jane Doe #16 to _, Palm Beach,
Florida.

(155) Onorabout February 6, 2005, Defendant JEFFREY EPSTETNmasmrbated in
the presence of Jane Doe #16, who was then a fourteen-year-old girl.

(156) On or about February 6, 2005, Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN -
-.Ianﬂ Doe #16, who was then a fourteen-year-old girl.

| (157) On or about February 6, 2005, Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN [l

— Jane Doe #16, who was then a fourteen-year-old girl.

(158) On or about February 6, 2005, Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN made a
payment of $300 to Jane Doe #16.

(159) On or about February 6, 2005, Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN made a
payment of $200 to Jane Doe #5.

(160) On or about February 10, 2005, Defendant _ placed one or
more telephone calls to a telephone used by Jane Doe #13.

(161) On or about February 10, 2005, Defendants JEFFREY EPSTEIN, -
I - S - I
traveled from New York, New York to Palm Beach County, Florida, aboard the Boeing 727

aircraft owned by JEGE, INC.
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(162) On or about February 10, 2005, Defendant ||| r12ced one or

more telephone calls to a telephone used by Jane Doe #14.

(163) On or about February 21, 2005, Defendant || »12ced one or
more telephone calls to a telephone used by Jane Doe #14.

(164) On or about February 21, 2005, Defendants EPSTEIN, [} and
_ traveled from the U.S. Virgin Islands to Palm Beach County, Florida,

aboard the Boeing 727 aircraft owned by JEGE, INC.

(165) On or about February 23,2005, Defendant [N pl2ced 2

telephone call to a telephone used by Jane Doe #4.

(166) On or about February 24, 2005, Defendant ||| v12c<d one or
more telephone calls to a telephone used by Jane Doe #14.

(167) On or about February 24, 2005, Defendants JEFFREY EPSTEIN,-
- and NG o cd fmm_ to Palm Beach
County, Florida, aboard the Gulfstream aircraft owned by Hyperion Air, Inc.

(168) In or around March 2005, Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN [

- Jane Doe #11, who was then a seventeen-year-old girl.
(169) On or about March 1, 2005, Defendant ||| | |} N ~<- TN
- placed one or more telephone calls to a telephone used by Jane Doe #13.
(170) On or about March 4, 2005, Defendants JEFFREY EPSTEIN, [
- a'k/a ‘| :d _avaled from New York,
New York to Palm Beach County, Florida aboard the Boeing 727 aircraﬁ owned by JEGE,
INC.
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(171) On orabout March 16, 2005, Defendant _ placed one

or more telephone calls to a telephone used by Jane Doe #13.

(172) On or about March 17, 2005, Defendant || | N o1oc<< oxe o«
more telephone calls to a telephone used by Jane Doe #14.

(173) On or about March 18, 2005, Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN traveled from
New York, New York to Palm Beach County, Florida aboard the Boeing 727 aircraft owned
by JEGE, INC.

(174) On or about March 18, 2005, Defendant [ 1<t 2 telephone
message for Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN regarding Jane Doe #6, stating: “Is it ok if [Jane
Doe #6] will come at 577

(175) On or about March 21, 2005, Defendant ||| I ~<- D

- placed one or more telephone calls to a telephone used by Jane Doe #13.

(176) On or about March 29, 2005, Defendant _ placed one or

more telephone calls to a telephone used by Jane Doe #6.

(177) On or about March 29, 2005, Defendant _ placed one or

more telephone calls to a telephone used by Jane Doe #5.

(178) On or about March 29, 2005, Defendant _ placed one or

more telephone calls to a telephone used by Jane Doe #13.

(179) On or about March 30, 2005, Defendant _ placed one or

more calls to a telephone used by Jane Doe #5.

(180) On or about March 30, 2005, Defendant _ placed one or

more telephone calls to a telephone used by Jane Doe #14.
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(181) On or about March 31, 2005, Defendant [ D placed one or

more telephone calls to a telephone used by Jane Doe #14.

(182) On or about March 31, 2005, Defendant _ placed one or

more calls to a telephone used by Jane Doe #5.

(183) On orabout March 31, 2005, Defendant [ D p'aced one

or more telephone calls to a telephone used by Jane Doe #8.

(184) On or about March 31, 2005, Defendant-- a'k/a ‘-

- placed one or more telephone calls to a telephone used by .Jane Doe #14.

(185) On or about March 31, 2005, Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN traveled from
New York, New York to Palm Beach County, Florida, aboard the Boeing 727 aircraft owned
by JEGE, INC.

(186) On or about March 31,2005, Defendants JEFFREY EPSTEIN and [}
- caused Jane Doe #5 to make a call to a telephone used by Jane Doe #16.

(187) Omn or about April 1, Et};}ﬁ, Defendants JEFFREY EPSTEIN and -
- caused Jane Doe #5 to make one or more calls to a telephone used by Jane Doe
#16.

(188) On orabout April 1, 2005, Defendan_placed one or more

telephone calls to a telephone used by Jane Doe #8.

(189) On or about April 2, 2005, Defendant ||| I ~~- ‘T

- placed one or more telephone calls to a telephone used by Jane Doe #17.

(190) On or about April 2, 2005, Defendant - - a/k/a -

-planat:l one or more telephone calls to a telephone used by Jane Doe #14.
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(191) Onor about May 19, 2005, Defendant _placf:d one or

more telephone calls to a telephone used by Jane Doe #14,

(192)- On or about May 19, 2005, Defendant _placed One Or more

telephone calls to a telephone used by Jane Doe #17.

(193) On or about May 19, 2005, Defendants JEFFREY EPSTEIN, [

T ———

-to Palm Beach County, Florida, aboard the Gulfstream aircraft owned by Hyperion
Air, Ine.
(194) On oraboutJ une 30, 2005, Defendant _ caused one or more

telephone calls to a telephone used by Jane Doe #17.

(195) On or about June 30, 2005, Defendants JEFFREY EPSTEIN and [

- traveled from — to Palm Beach County, Florida aboard the

Gulfstream aircraft owned by Hyperion Air, Inc.

(196) In or around July 2005, Defendant || cd Jane Doe #18
from the kitchen of ||| B urstairs to Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN’s

S—

(197) On or about July 2, 2005, Defendant _ placed o.ne or Mmore

telephone calls to a telephone used by Jane Doe #17.

(198) On orabout July 22, 2005, Defend an_placed one or more

telephone calls to a telephone used by Jane Doe #17.
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(199) On or about July 22, 2005, Defendants JEFFREY EPSTEIN and -
- traveled from _ to Palm Beach County, Florida aboard the
Gulfstream aircraft owned by Hyperion Air, Inc.

(200) On or about August 18, 2005, Defendants JEFFREY EPSTEIN, ([ NNEGN
- alk/a _ :md— traveled fmm-
-r:: Palm Beach County, Florida aboard the Gulfstream aircraft owned by
Hyperion Air, Inc. -

(201) On or about August 18, 2005, Dﬂfendant_ placed one or

more telephone calls to a telephone used by Jane Doe #17.

(202) On or about August 19, 2005, Defendant ||| GG TN > TN

- placed one or more telephone calls to a telephone used by Jane Doe #17.

(203) Onorabout August 21, 2005, Dcfendant_laced one

or more telephone calls to a telephone used by Jane Doe #17.

(204) On or about September 3, 2005, Defendants JEFFREY EPSTEIN and

S O - S i< from the US. Virgin Istands to Paim

Beach County, Florida aboard the Gulfstream aircraft owned by Hyperion Air, Inc.

(205) On or about September 3, 2005, Dﬁfmdant-- alk/a -

- placed one or more telephone calls to a telephone used by Jane Doe #17.
(206) Omn or about September 18, 2005, Defendant |GGG 2ccd one or

more telephone calls to a telephone used by Jane Doe #17.

(207) On or about September 18, 2005, Defendants JEFFREY EPSTEIN,

I - S— . i o
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_ to Palm Beach County, Florida aboard the Gulfstream

aircraft owned by Hyperion Air, Inc.

(208) On or about September 18, 2005, Defﬁndaut_ sent a text

message to a telephone used by Jane Doe #17.

(209) On or about September 29, 2005, Defendant ||| Gy 2ced

one or more telephone calls to a telephone used by Jane Doe #17.

(210) On or about September 29, 20035, Defendants JEFFREY EPSTEIN,

from_ to Palm Beach County, Florida aboard the Gulfstream

aircraft owned by Hyperion Air, Inc.

(211) On or about September 30, 2005, Defendant - - a'k/a

‘_ placed one or more telephone calls to a telephone used by Jane Doe

#17.

(212) On or about October 1, 2005, Defendant ||| Gz - 2

telephone message for Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN stating: “[Jane Doe #14]

confirmed at 11 AM and [Jane Doe #17] — 4PM”.

(213) On orabout October 2, 2005, Defendant || D P'2ced one

or more telephone calls to a telephone used by Jane Doe #17.

(214) On or about October 3, 20035, Deﬂandant_ caused one

or more telephone calls to a telephone used by Jane Doe #17.
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(215) On or about October 3, 2005, Defendant || N <t 2 telephone
message for Defendant JEFFREY EPSTEIN stating: “[Jane Doe #17] will be ¥ hour late”.

(216) In or around the first week of October of 2005, Defendant JEFFREY
EPSTEIN engaged in sexual intercourse with Jane Doe #17, who was then a
seventeen-year-old girl.

(217) In or around the first week of October of 2005, Defendant JEFFREY
EPSTEIN made a payment of $350.00 to Jane Doe #17, who was then a seventeen-year-old
girl. |

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 371 and 2.

|
|
i
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COUNT 2
(Conspiracy to Travel: 18 U.S.C. § 2423(e))

25.  Paragraphs 1 through 19 of this indictment are re-alleged and incorporated by
reference as fully set for the herein.
26.  From at least as early as 2001 through in or around October 2003, the exact dates

being unknown to the Grand Jury, the defendants,

JEFFREY EPSTEIN,

and

did knowingly and willfully conspire with each other and with others known and unknown to travel

m mterstate commerce for the purpose of engaging in illicit sexual conduct, as defined in 18 U.S.C. §
2423(f), with another person, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 2423(b); all in
violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 2423(e).

COUNT 3
(Facilitation of Unlawful Travel of Another: 18 U.S.C. § 2423(d))

27. | Paragraphs 1 through 19 of this Indictment are re-alleged and incorporated by
reference as though fully set forth herein.

28.  From at least as early as in or about 2001 through in or around October 2005, the
exact dates being unknown to the Grand Jury, in Palm Beach County, in the Southern District of
Florida, and elsewhere, the defendant,

I .
did, for the purpose of commercial advantage or private financial gain, arrange and facilitate the

travel of a person, that is Defendant Jeffrey Epstein, knowing that such person was traveling in
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interstate commerce for the purpose of engaging in illicit sexual conduct, as defined in 18 U.S.C. §
2423(f); in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 2423(d).

COUNT 4
(Sex Trafficking: 18 U.S.C. § 1591(a)(2))

29.  Paragraphs 1 through 19 of this Indictment are re-alleged and incorporated by
reference as though fully set forth herein.

30.  From at least as early as in or about 2001 through in or about October 20035, the exact
dates being unknown to the Grand Jury, in Palm Beach County, in the Southem District of Florida,

and elsewhere, the defendants,
and

did knowingly benefit, financially or by receiving anything of value, from participation in a venture,
as defined in 18 U.S.C. § 1591(c)(3), which had engaged in an act described in violation of 18
U.S.C. § 1591(a)(1), that is, the recruiting, enticing, providing, and obtaining by any means a person,
in or affecting interstate commerce, knowing that the person or persons had not attained the age of 18
years and would be caused to engage in a commercial sex act as defined in 18 U.S.C. § 1591(c)(1);
m violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1591(a)(2), 1591(b)(2), and 2.
COUNT 5
(Enticement of a Minor: 18 U.S.C. § 2422(h))
31.  Paragraphs 1 through 19 of this Indictment are re-alleged and incorporated by

reference as though fully set forth herein.
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32.  From in or around the spring of 2003 through on or about October 2, 2005, the exact
dates being unknown to the Grand Jury, in Palm Beach County, in the Southern District of Florida,
and elsewhere, the defendants,

JEFFREY EPSTEIN
and

did use a facility or means of interstate commerce, that is, the telephone, to knowingly persuade,
induce and entice Jane Doe #4, who was a person who had not attained the age of 18 years, to engage
in prostitution and in a sexual activity for which a person can be charged with a criminal offense, that
is violations of Florida Statutes Sections 800.04(5)(a), 800.04(6)(a), and 800.04(7)(a); in violation of
Title 18, United States Code, Sections 2422(b) and 2.

COUNT 6
(Enticement of a Minor: 18 U.S.C. § 2422(b))

33.  Paragraphs 1 through 19 of this Indictment are re-alleged and incorporated by
reference as though fully set forth herein.

34,  Inoraround March 2004, the exact dates being unknown to the Grand Jury, in Palm
Beach County, in the Southern District of Florida, and elsewhere, the defendants,

JEFFREY EPSTEIN
and

did use a facility or means of interstate commerce, that is, the telephone, to knowingly persuade,
induce and entice Jane Doe #5, who was a person who had not attained the age of 18 years, to engage
in prostitution; in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 2422(b) and 2.

COUNT 7

35

EFTA01718473



(Enticement of a Minor: 18 U.S.C. § 2422(b))
35.  Paragraphs 1 through 19 of this Indictment are re-alleged and incorporated by
reference as though fully set forth herein.

36.  From in or around April 2004 through on or around June 29, 2005, the exact dates
being unknown to the Grand Jury, in Palm Beach County, in the Southern District of Florida, and
elsewhere, the defendants,

JEFFREY EPSTEIN,
and
a
did use a facility or means of interstate commerce, that is, the telephone, to knowingly persuade,

induce and entice Jane Doe #6, who was a person who had not attained the age of 18 years, to engage

in prostitution; in violation of Tifle 18, United States Code, Sections 2422(b) and 2.

COUNT 8
(Enticement of a Minor: 18 U.S.C, § 2422(b))

37.  Paragraphs 1 through 19 of this Indictment are re-alleged and incorporated by
reference as though fully set forth herein.

38.  In or around July 2004, the exact dates being unknown to the Grand Jury, in Palm
Beach County, in the Southern District of Florida, and elsewhere, the defendants,

JEFFREY EPSTEIN
and

did use a facility or means of interstate commerce, that is, the telephone, to knowingly persuade,
induce and entice Jane Doe #7, who was a person who had not attained the age of 18 years, to engage

in prostitution; in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 2422(b) and 2.
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COUNT 9
(Enticement of a Minor: 18 U.S.C. § 2422(b))

39.  Paragraphs 1 through 19 of this Indictment are re-alleged and incorporated by
reference as though fully set forth herein.

40.  From in or around July 2004 through on or around December 29, 2004, the exact
dates being unknown to the Grand Jury, in Palm Beach County, in the Southern District of Florida,

and elsewhere, the defendants,

JEFFREY EPSTEIN

and

did use a facility or means of interstate commerce, that is, the telephone, to knowingly persuade,

induce and entice Jane Doe #8, who was a person who had not attained the age of 18 years, to engage
in prostitution and in a sexual activity for which a person can be charged with a criminal offense, that
is a violation of Florida Statutes Section 794.05; in violation of Title 18, United States Code,
Sections 2422(b) and 2.

COUNT 10
(Enticement of a Minor: 18 U.S.C. § 2422(b))

41.  Paragraphs 1 through 19 of this Indictment are re-alleged and incorporated by
reference as though fully set forth herein.

42, From in or around July 2004 through on or about January 31, 2005, the exact dates
being unknown to the Grand Jury, in Palm Beach County, in the Southern District of Florida, and
elsewhere, the defendants,

JEFFREY EPSTEIN,
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and
did use a facility or means of interstate commerce, that is, the telephone, to knowingly persuade,
induce and entice Jane Doe #9, who was a person who had not attained the age of 18 years, to engage

in prostitution; in vielation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 24é2{b) and 2.

COUNT 11
(Enticement of a Minor: 18 U.S.C. § 2422(b))

43,  Paragraphs 1 through 19 of this Indictment an.: re-alleged and incorporated by
reference as though fully set forth herein.

44,  From in or around the middle of 2004 through on or about April 22, 2005, the exact
dates being unknown to the Grand Jury, in Palm Beach County, in the Southern District of Florida,
and elsewhere, the defendants,

JEFFREY EPSTEIN
and

did use a facility or means of interstate commerce, that is, the telephone, to knowingly persuade,
induce and entice Jane Doe #10, who was a person who had not aftained the age of 18 years, to
engage in prostitution; in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 2422(b) and 2.

COUNT 12
(Enticement of a Minor: 18 U.S.C. § 2422(b))
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45, Paragraphs 1 through 19 of this Indictment are re-alleged and incorporated by
reference as though fully set forth herein.

46, From in or around August 2004 through on or about May 27, 2005, the exact dates
being unknown to the Grand Jury, in Palm Beach County, in the Southern District of Florida, and

elsewhere, the defendants,

JEFFREY EPSTEIN,

and

[] »

a
did use a facility or means of interstate commerce,

t 1s, the telephone, to knowingly persuade,
mmduce and entice Jane Doe #11, who was a person who had not attained the age of 18 years, to

engage in prostitution; in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 2422(b) and 2.

COUNT 13
(Enticement of a Minor: 18 U.S.C. § 2422(b))

47.  Paragraphs 1 through 19 of this Indictment are re-alleged and incorporated by
reference as though fully set forth herein.

48, From in or around November 2004 through in or around March 2005, the exact dates
being unknown to iha Grand Jury, in Palm Beach County, in the Southern District of Florida, and
elsewhere, the defendants,

JEFFREY EPSTEIN,
and
akfa®
did use a facility or means of interstate commerce, that 1s, the telephone, to knowingly persuade,

induce and entice Jane Doe #13, who was a person who had not attained the age of 18 years, to

engage in prostitution and in a sexual activity for which a person can be charged with a criminal
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offense, that is a violation of Florida Statutes Section 794.05; in violation of Title 18, United
States Code, Sections 2422(b) and 2.

COUNT 14
(Enticement of a Minor: 18 U.S.C. § 2422(b))

49.  Paragraphs 1 through 19 of this Indictment are re-alleged and incorporated by
reference as though fully set forth herein.

50.  From in or around December 2004 through on or about June 5, 2005, the exact dates
being unknown to the Grand Jury, in Palm Beach County, in the Southern District of Florida, and
elsewhere, the defendants,

JEFFREY EPSTEIN,
and

L :

did use a facility or means of interstate commerce, that is, the telephone, to knowingly persuade,

induce and entice Jane Doe #14, who was a person who had not attained the age of 18 years, to
engage in prostitution; in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 2422(b) and 2.

~COUNT 15
(Enticement of a Minor: 18 U.S.C. § 2422(b))

51.  Paragraphs 1 through 19 of this Indictment are re-alleged and incorporated by
reference as though fully set forth ilﬁl‘f'rin.

52.  In or around December 2004, the exact dates being unknown to the Grand Jury, in
Palm Beach County, in the Southern District of Florida, and elsewhere, the defendants,

JEFFREY EPSTEIN
and
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did use a facility or means of interstate commerce, that is, the telephone, to knowingly persuade,
induce and entice Jane Doe #15, who was a person who had not attained the age of 18 years, to
engage In prostitution; in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 2422(b) and 2.

COUNT 16
" (Enticement of a Minor: 18 U.S.C. § 2422(b))

53.  Paragraphs 1 through 19 of this Indictment are re-alleged and incorporated by
reference as though fully set forth herein.

54.  In or around February 2005, the exact dates being unknown to the Grand Jury, in
Palm Beach County, in the Southern District of Florida, and elsewhere, the defendants,

JEFFREY EPSTEIN
and

did use a facility or means of interstate commerce, that is, the telephone, to knowingly persuade,
induce and entice Jane Doe #16, who was a person who had not attained the age of 18 years, to
engage in prostitution and in a sexual activity for which any person can be charged with a
criminal offense, that is violations of Florida Statutes Sections 800.04(5)(a), 800.04(6)(a),

and 800.04(7)(a); in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 2422(b) and 2.

COUNT 17
(Enticement of a Minor: 18 U.S.C. § 2422(b))

55.  Paragraphs 1 through 19 of this Indictment are re-alleged and incorporated by
reference as though fully set forth herein. ‘
56.  From in or around February 2005 through in or around the first week of October
2005, the exact dates being unknown to the Grand Jury, in Palm Beach County, in the Southem

District of Florida, and elsewhere, the defendants,

41

EFTA01718479



JEFFREY EPSTEIN,

tb
and

did use a facility or means of interstate commerce, that is, the telephone, to knowingly persuade,

induce or entice Jane Doe #17, who was a person who had not attained the age of 18 years, to engage

in prostitution and in a sexual activity for which a person can be charged with a criminal offense, that
is a violation of Florida Statutes Section 794.05; in violation of Title 18, United States Code,
Sections 2422(b) and 2.

COUNT 18
(Enticement of a Minor: 18 U.S.C. § 2422(b))

57.  Paragraphs 1 through 19 of this Indictment are re-alleged and incorporated by
reference as though fully set forth herein.

58.  From in or around February 2005 through in or around April 20035, the exact dates
being unknown fo the Grand Jury, in Palm Beach County, in the Southern District of Florida, and

elsewhere, the defendants,

JEFFREY EPSTEIN,
and

ak/a*

did use a facility or means of interstate commerce, that is, the telephone, to knowingly persuade,
induce and entice Jane Doe #18, who was a person who had not attained the age of 18 years, to

engage in prostitution; in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 2422(b) and 2.

COUNTS 19 THROUGH 22
(Travel to Engage in Illicit Sexual Conduct: 18 U.S.C. § 2423(b))
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59.

reference as though fully set forth herein.

60.

Paragraphs 1 through 19 of this Indictment are re-alleged and incorporated by

On or about the dates enumerated as to each count listed below, from a place outside

the Southern District of Florida to a place inside the Southern District of Florida, the Defendant(s)

listed below traveled in interstate commerce for the purpose of engaging in illicit sexual conduct as

defined in 18 U.S.C. § 2423(f), with a person under 18 years of age, that is, the person(s) listed in

each count below:

COUNT DATE(S) MINOR(S) INVOLVED DEFENDANT(S)
19 T/16/2004 Jane Doe #7 JEFFEEY EPSTEIN
Jane Doe #8
Jane Doe #9
20 3/31/2005 Jane Doe #6 JEFFREY EPSTEIN
Jane Doe #13
Jane Doe #14
Jane Doe #16 a'ld/a
Jane Doe #17
21 9/18/2005 Jane Doe #17 JEFFREY EPSTEIN
ak/a“
22 0/29/05 Jane Doe #17 JEFFREY EPSTEIN

a'k/a ¢

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 2423(b) and 2.

COUNTS 23 THROUGH 32

(Sex Trafficking: 18 U.S.C. § 1591(a)(1))
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61.

reference as though fully set forth herein.

62.

Paragraphs 1 through 19 of this Indictment are re-alleged and incorporated by

On or about the dates enumerated as to each count listed below, the exact dates

being unknown to the Grand Jury, in Palm Beach County, in the Southern District of Florida,

and elsewhere, the Defendants listed below did knowingly, in and affecting interstate and

foreign commerce, recruit, entice, provide, and obtain by any means a person, that is, the

person in each count listed below, knowing that the person had not attained the age of 18

years and would be caused to engage in a commercial sex act as defined in 18 U.S.C. §

1591(c)(1):
COUNT DATE(S) MINOR(S) DEFENDANT(S)
INVOLVED

23 2001 - 2004 Jane Doe #2 JEFFREY EPSTEIN
24 April 2004 Jane Doe #6 JEFFREY EPSTEIN

through

June 29, 2005

25 July 2004 Jane Doe #7 JEFFREY EPSTEIN
26 July 2004 Jane Doe #8 JEFFREY EPSTEIN

through

December 29, 2004

27 July 2004 Jane Doe #9 JEFFREY EPSTEIN

through

January 31, 2005
44
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COUNT DATE(S) MINOR(S) DEFENDANT(S)
INVOLVED
28 Mid-2004 Jane Doe #10 JEFFREY EPSTEIN
trough I
April 22, 2005
29 August 2004 Jane Doe #11 JEFFREY EPSTEIN
through
May 27, 2005
a'k/a
30 November 2004 Jane Doe #13 JEFFREY EPSTEIN
through
March 2005
ak/a
31 December 2004 Jane Doe #14 JEFFREY EPSTEIN
through
June 5, 2005
a'k/a
32 February 2005 Jane Doe #17 JEFFREY EPSTEIN
through
first week of
October 2005

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1591(a)(1) and 2.

FORFEITURE 1

Upon conviction of the violation alleged in Count 1 of this indictment, the defendants,

serrrey epsten, I S O - I -
_ shall forfeit to the United States any property, real or personal,

which constitutes or is derived from proceeds traceable to the violation.

Pursuant to Title 28, United States Code, Section 2461 ; Title 18, United States Code,

Section 981(a)(1)(C); and Title 21, United States Code, Section 853.
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If the property described above as being subject to forfeiture, as a result of any act or

omission of the defendants, JEFFREY EPSTEIN, _ - -

(1)  cannot be located upon the exercise of due diligence;

.(2)  hasbeen translferred or sold to, or deposited with a third person;

(3)  has been placed beyond the jurisdiction of the Court;

(4)  has been substantially diminished in value; or

(5)  hasbeen cmmnlingled with other property which cannot be subdivided without
difficulty;
it is the intent of the United States, pursuant to Title 21, United States Code, Section 853(p).
to seek forfeiture of any other property of the defendants up to the value of the above
forfeitable property.

All pursuant to Title 28 United States Code, Section 2461; Title 18, United States
Code, Section 981(a)(1)(C); and Title 21 United States Code, Section 853.

FORFEITURE 2

Upon conviction of any of the violations alleged in Counts 2, 3, 5-50, 59, 60, of this

indictment, the defendants, JEFFREY EPSTEIN, _ - -
/e[S B <! forfeit to the United States

any property, real or personal, constituting or traceable to gross profits or other proceeds

obtained from such offense; and any property, real or personal, used or intended to be used to
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commit or to promote the commission of such offense, including but not limited to the

following:

a. A parcel of land located at - -, Palm Beach, Florida

33480, including all buildings, improvements, fixtures, attachments, and easements found
therein or thereon, and more particularly described as:
Being all of \ _, as
recorded in , In the records of Palm Beach County, Florida
and

BEING that portion lyin

, as recorded 1n ublic
Records of Palm Beach County, Florida, being bounded on the West by the
West side of an existing concrete seawall and the northerly extension thereof
as shown on the Adair & Brady, Inc., drawing
and bounded on the East by the shoreline as shown on the plat of
- and bounded on the North and South by the Westerly extensions of the
North and South lines respectively of containing 0.07 acres, more or
less.

Pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Section 2253.

If any of the forfeitable property described in the forfeiture section of this indictment,
as a result of any act or omission of the defendants JEFFREY EPSTEIN, _
- T - I

(a)  cannot be located upon the exercise of due diligence;

(b)  has been transferred or sold to, or deposited with, a third person;

(c¢)  has been placed beyond the jurisdiction of the Court;

(d)  has been substantially diminished in value; or
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(e)  has been commingled with other property which cannot be divided without
difficulty;
it is the intent of the United States, pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Section 2253(0),
to seek forfeiture of any other property of said defcndant- up to the value of the above
forfeitable property.
Pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Section 2253.
FORFEITURE 3

Upon conviction of any of the violations alleged in Counts 4, 51-58, of this

indictment, the defendants, JEFFREY EPSTEIN, _ - -
a/k/a _ and_ shall forfeit to the United States

any property, real or personal, that was used or intended to be used to commit or to facilitate
the commission of such violation; and any property, real or personal, constituting or derived
from any proceeds that such person obtained, directly or indirectly, as a result of such
violation, including but not limited to the following:

a. A parcel of land located at _, Palm Beach, Florida
33480, including all buildings, improvements, fixtures, attachments, and easements found
therein or thereon, and more particularly described as:

Being all of , as
recorded in , in the records of Palm Beach County, Florida

and

BEING that portion lving West of
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Records of Palm Beach County, Florida, being bounded on the West by the
West side of an existing concrete seawall and the northerly extension thereof
as shown on the Adair & Brady, Inc., drawing

and bounded on the East by the shoreline as shown on the plat o

- and bounded on the North and South by the Westerly extensions of the
North and South lines respectively o containing 0.07 acres, more or
less.

Pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Section 1594(b).

A TRUE BILL.

FOREPERSON

R. ALEXANDER ACOSTA
UNITED STATES ATTORNEY

ASSISTANT UNITED STATES ATTORNEY
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U.S. Department of Justice

Criminal Division

Andrew G, Oosterbaan, Chief

Childd Exploitarion and Ofveenity Sacrion f400 Neve York Averno, NH
Sufte 600
sk m, DC 20530

May 15, 2008

Tay Lefkowitz, Esq.

Kirkland & Ellis LLP

Citigroup Center

153 E. 537 St

New York, NY 10022-4611
Re:  Investigation of Jeffery Epstein
Dear Mr. Lefkowitz:

Pursuant to your request and the request of U.S. Attorney R. Alexander Acosta, we have
independently evaluated certain issues raised in the investigation of Jeffrey Epstein to determine
whether a decision (© prosecute Mr. Epstein for federal eriminal violations would contradict
criminal enforcement policy interests, As part of our evaluation, we have reviewed letters
written on behalf of Mr, Epstein on February 1, 2007, June 25, 2007, July 6, 2007, March 28,
2008, April 8, 2008, April 28, 2008, and May 14, 2008, with their attachments, We have also
reviewed memos prepared by the U S, Altorney’s Office. As you will recall, we met with you
and other representatives of Mr. Epstein to further discuss your views on the propricty of a
federal prosecution. We have discussed the factual and legal issues you raise with the Criminal
Division’s Appellate Section, and we consulted with the Officc of Enforcement Operations
concerning the petite policy. .

We are examining the narrow question as to whether there is a legitimate basis for the
U.S. Attorney's Office to procesd with a federal prosecution of Mr. Epstein, Ultimately, the
prosecutorial decision making authority within a U.S. Altormney’s Office lies with the U8,
Attomey. Therefore, to borrow a phrase from the case law, the question we sought to answer
was whether U.S. Attomey Acosta would abuse his discretion if he authorized prosecution in this
case,

As you know, our review of this case is limited, both factually and legally. We have not
looked at the entire universe of facts in this case. It is not the role of the Criminal Division to re-
conduct a complete factual inquiry from scratch. Furthermore, we did not analyze any issues
conceming prosecution under federal statutes that do not pertain to child exploitation, such as the
money laundering statutes.
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As was made clear at the outset, we did not review the facts, circumstances, or terms
included in the plea offer, nor any allegations that individuals invelved in the investigation
engaged in misconduct. Despite that agreement, we note that your letters of April 8, April 28,
and May 14 focus in large part on accusations of investigative or prosecutorial misconduct. Not
only do allegations of prosecutorial misconduct fall outside the boundary of our agreed review,
they also fall outside the authority of the Criminal Division in the [irst instance. Simply, the
Criminal Division does not investigate or resolve allegations of professional misconduct by
federal prosecutors. For these reasons, we do not respond to the portion of those letters that
discuss alleged misconduct, :

Based on our revicw of all of these malerials, and after careful consideration of the issues,
we conclude that U.5. Attorey Acosta could properly use his discretion to authorize prosecution
in this case. We will briefly address each of the issues that you have raised,

Knowledge of age. Federal child exploitation statutes differ as to whether there must be
proof thal the defendant was aware that the children were under the age of 18. However, even
for those statutes where knowledge of age is an element of the offense, it is possible to satisfy
that element with proof that the defendant was deliberately ignorant of facts which would suggest
that the person was a minor, For that reason, the fact that some of the individuals allegedly lied
to Mr. Epstein about their age is not dispositive of the issne. While there may be an open factual
issue as to Mr. Epstein’s knowledge, we cannot say that it would be impossible to prove
knowledge ol age for any such charges which require it. Therefore, Mr. Acosta could rightfi ully
cenclude that this factual issue is best resolved by a jury.

Travel for the purpose. In the materials You prepared, you suggest that Mr. Epstein
should not be charged with violating 18 U.S.C. § 2423(b) because his dominant purpose in going
to Florida was not to engage in illegal sexual activity, but rather to retum to one of his residences,
While we fully understand your argument, we also find that the U.S. Atiorney’s office has a good
faith basis fully to develop the facts on this issue and brief the law to permit a court to decide
whether the law properly reaches such conduct. Mr, Acosta would not be abusing his discretion
if he decided 1o pursue such a course of action,

Intent 1o engage in the conduct at the time of travel. Based on our teview of the facts of
this case, we respectfully disagree that there is no evidence concerning Mr. Epstein’s intent when
he traveled, and when that intent was formed. Should Mr. Acosta elect Lo Jet the case proceed so
that a jury can resolve this factual issue, he would be within his discretion to do so.

Use of a facility or means of interstate or Joreign commerce. Much of the materials you
have prepared and much of the meeting we had focused on 18 U.S.C. § 2422(b), specifically your
contention that Mr. Epstein did not use the phone to cocrce anyone to engage in illegal sexual
activity. We understand the issye Yyou raise conceming the statutory interpretation. As before,
however, we cannot agree that there is no evidence that would support a charge under Section
2422(b), nor can we agree that there is no argument in support of the application of that statute to
this case. Finally, our assessment is that the application of that statute to these facts would nof be

2
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so novel as to implicate the so-called “clear statement tule,” the Ex Post Facto clause, or the Due
Process clause. As with the other legal issues, Mr. Acosta may elect fo proceed with the case.

Absence of coercion. With respect to 18 U.S.C. § 1591, the alleged absence of the use of
force, fraud, or coercion is of no moment, The statute does nol require the use of force, fraud,
and coercion against minors. Because of their age, a degree ol coercion is presumed. In your
materials, you note that the statute requires that the minors must be “caused” fo engage in a
comumercial sex act, further arguing that the word “cause” suggests that a certain amount of
undue influence was used. We reject that interpretation, as it would read back into the offense an
element-coercion—that Congress has expressly excluded. We have successfully prosecuted
defendants for the commercial sexual cxploitation of minors, even when the minors testified that
not only did they voluntarily engage in the commercial sex acts, it was their idea to do so. As
such, Mr. Acosta could properly decide to pursue charges under Section 1591 cven if there is no
cvidence of coercion.

More broadly, a defendant’s eriminal liability does not hinge on his victim identifying as
having suffered at his hands. Thercfore, a prosecution could procced, should Mr. Acosta decide
to do so, even though some of the young women allegedly have said that they do not view
themselves as victims,

Witness credibility. As all prosceutors know, there are no perfect witnesses. Particularly
in cases involving exploited children, as onc member of your defensc leam, Ms, Thacker, surely
knows from her work at CEOS, it is not uncomman for victim-witnesses to give conflicting
statements. The prosecutors are in the best position to asscss the witness's credibility, Often, the
prosecutor may decide that the best approach is to present the wiiness, let defense counsel
explore the credibility problems on cross-cxamination, and let the jury resolve the issue. Mr.
Acosta would be within his authority (o select that approach, especially when here there arc
multiple, mutually-corroborating witnesses.

Contradictions and omissions in the search warrant application. We have carefully
reviewed the factual issues you raise conceming the scarch wartant application. For a search
warrant to be suppressed, however, the factual errors oust be material, and the officers must not
have proceeded in good faith. Despite the numerous factual errors you describe, the U.S.
Attorney’s Office could still plausibly argue that the mistakes—whether inadvertent or
intentional-were not material to the determination that probable cause existed for a search, and
that the search was in good faith in any event, As such, Mr. Acosta could properly elect to
defend the scarch warrant in court rather than forego prosecution.

Petite Policy: Afler reviewing the petite policy and consulting with the Office of
Enforcement Operations (“OEQ™), we conclude that the petite policy does not prohibit federal
prosecution in this case. According to the U.S. Attomney’s Manual, the petite policy “applies
whenever there has been a prior state or federal prosecution resulting in an acquittal, a
conviction, including one resulting from a plea agreement, or a dismissal or other termination of
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the case on the merits after jeopardy has attached.” USAM 9-2.031(C). Our understanding is
that the stale case is 5(ill pending, As such, the procedural posture of the state case does not
implicate the petite policy.

We recognize that the petite policy could be triggered if the state case concluded after a
federal indictment was issued but prior to the commencement of any federal trial, Jd. However,
the pelicy “does not apply ... where the [state] prosecution involved only a minor part of the
contemplated federal charges.” USAM 9-2,031(B). Based on our understanding of the possible
federal charges and existing state charges, we do not think the petite policy would be an issue
should federal proceedings take place.

Federalism and Prosecuiorial Discretion. All of the above issues essentially ask whether
a federal prosecution can proceed. We understand, however, that you also ask whether a federal
prosecution should proceed, even in the event that all of the elements of a federal offense could
be proven. On this issue, you raised two arguments: that the conduct at issue here is traditionally
a slale concem because the aclivity is entirely local, and that the typical prosecution under federal
child exploitation statutes have different facts than the ones implicated here. You have
essentially asked us to look into whether a prosecution would so violate federal prosecutorial
policy that a United States Attomey’s Office should not pursue a prosecution. We do not think
that is the case here for the following reasons,

Simply, the commercial sexual exploitation of children js a federal concern, even when
the conduct is local, and regardiess of whether the defendant provided the child (the “pimp™) or
paid for the child (the “john™). In your materials, you refer to a letter sent by the Department of
Justice to Congress in whicl the Department expresses concem over the expansion of federal
laws to reach almost all instances of prostitution. Tn that portion of the letter, the Department
was expressly referring to a proposed federal law that reach adult prostitution where no force,
fraud, or coercion was used. Indeed, the point being made in that letter is that the Department’s
cfTorts are properly focused on the commercial sexual exploitation of children and the
exploitation of adulis through the use of foree, fraud, or coercion. As such, there is no
meonsistency between the position taken in that letter and the federal prosecution of wholly local
instances of the commercial sexual exploitation of children.

If Congress wanted to limit the reach of federal statutes only to those who profit from the
comumercial scxual exploitation of children, or only to those who actually traffic children across
state lines, it could have done so. It did not. Fmally, that a prosecution of Mr. Epstein might not
look precisely like the cases that came before it is not dispositive. We can say with confidence
that this case is consistent in principle with other federal prosecutions nationwide. As such, Mr,
Acosta can soundly exercise his authority to decide to pursue a prosecution even though it might
involve a novel application of a federal statute,

Conclusion. After carefully considering all the factual and legal issues raised, as well as
the arguments concerning the general propriety of a federal case against Mr, Epstein on these
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facts, we conclude that federal prosecution in this case would not be improper or inappropriate,
While you raise many compelling arguments, we do not see anything that says to us categorically
that a federal case should not be brought. Mr. Acosta would not be abusing his prosecutorial
discretion should he authorize federal prosecution of Mr. Epsteiy.

cc:  AAG Alice 8. Figher
DAAG Sigal P. Mandelker L
U.S. Attomey R. Alexander Acosta
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for delivering it to the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any dissemination or coping of this laesimile is
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